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1503 N. Imperial Ave. Suite 104, El Centro, Ca. 92243 
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Date:  October 27, 2025 
 
To:      Prospective Respondents 
 
From:     David Aguirre, Executive Director 
  
REF: Architectural, Environmental and Engineering Services for the Imperial Valley 

Transit Administration, Operations and Maintenance Facility 
Request for Proposals (RFP) ADDENDUM #2 

 
 
 
The following are clarifications to date based upon questions posed by potential respondents.  
 

1. Is there an ALTA Survey available for review?  
 
ICTC has not prepared an ALTA Survey for the project site. ICTC was able to obtain 
an exhibit from Chicago Title Company illustrating the plottable easements. Said 
exhibit is made a part of this addendum. ICTC is working with a surveying consultant 
to prepare an ALTA Survey. The ALTA Survey is anticipated to be completed prior to 
the award of contract.  

 
2. What should we assume in terms of the extents of offsite street improvements, including both 

roadways and utilities to serve the project? 
 

ICTC intends to fully utilize the anticipated offsite improvements within ICTC property 
boundaries. Offsite infrastructure may include extended roadway infrastructure, 
sidewalks, bike lanes, curb and gutter, driveway entrances, stormwater, water and 
sewer infrastructure etc. Anticipated improvements are expected for Waterman Avenue 
and Cruickshank Drive.  
 
It should be noted that per the city of El Centro Circulation Element, Waterman Avenue 
is planned as a 4-Lane Arterial, while Cruickshank Drive is planned as a 2-Lane 
Arterial. The awarded consultant will need to complete the design and support services 
for the offsite infrastructure (within ICTC property boundaries) as part of this effort. 
 
https://www.cityofelcentro.org/1185/Planning-Documents 
 
 

https://www.cityofelcentro.org/1185/Planning-Documents


The city of El Centro recently approved an amendment to the roadway layout to 
Waterman Avenue between Cruickshank Drive and Bradshaw Avenue. The same 
layout is anticipated to be utilized for the off-site design of Waterman Avenue associated 
with this project. The amended layout includes the addition of bicycle lanes, median 
island striping and similar items.  
 
Communication and coordination with the city of El Centro is critical in the 
development of offsite infrastructure in addition to determining impacts to city water, 
sewer and stormwater infrastructure and capacity because of the facility’s anticipated 
demand. 
 
The amended Waterman Avenue layout is provided as part of this addendum.  

 
3. Will ICTC coordinate and facilitate stakeholder outreach with the support of documents 

provided by the consultant, or will the consultant be responsible for coordinating and 
facilitating outreach? 

 
It is expected that the consultant will lead the outreach efforts. ICTC will assist with 
coordination and will participate in the outreach efforts to offer support to the 
consulting team. 
 

4. Will stakeholder outreach documentation need to be presented and communicated in both 
English and Spanish? 
 
Yes, all outreach documentation will need to be prepared in English and Spanish. ICTC 
will provide support to the consulting team during outreach presentations.  
 

5. Will the offsite improvements include any improvements to existing adjacent bus stops or the 
addition of new bus stops? 
 
The offsite improvements will not include any improvements to existing adjacent bus 
stops. It is not anticipated that ICTC will be adding any new bus stop infrastructure 
near the new facility.  
 

6. Are there any master planned public improvements required of the City of El Centro to be 
implemented as part of this project? 
 
ICTC is not aware of any master planned public improvements to the area outside of 
those associated with Waterman Avenue and Cruickshank Drive as noted within the 
city circulation element and the adjustments to Waterman Avenue as provided within 
the attached the City of El Centro Jacaranda Gardens Improvement Plans specifically 
Sheet 5. 

 
7. We request clarification on the statement regarding “Language in the Geotechnical Report 

that prohibits the use of a separate Geotechnical Consultant during construction efforts is 
prohibited.”  It is our understanding that it is industry standard to include language in a 



geotechnical report that recommends that the geotechnical firm be retained to provide 
construction testing and inspection services to the project.  It does not prohibit the “owner” 
from using a different geotechnical firm to provide the testing services as long as the 
geotechnical firm selected by the “owner” assumes the responsibility (and liability) of the 
geotechnical aspects of the project. 
 
ICTC has previously encountered concerns from federal funding agencies pertaining to 
the recommended language noted by Geotechnical Engineering Firms within 
Geotechnical Reports. It was communicated that the language restricts the ability of 
other geotechnical firms from competing and securing opportunities during the 
construction phase of the project. ICTC will work with our federal funding partners 
during the construction phase to remedy this issue for this project. 

 
Therefore, ICTC amends Section 5, Item 13 – Task – Site Civil Design as follows: 
Site data and geotechnical investigation. The Consultant will provide a geotechnical 
survey of the Transit Facility. (Language within the Geotechnical Report that prohibits 
the use of a separate Geotechnical Consultant during construction efforts is prohibited). 
At a minimum, surveying shall locate physical features such as sidewalks, trees, … 

 
8. We did not find language in the RFP that prohibits the Geotechnical Consultant that provides 

the Geotechnical Investigation Report for the design consultant team during the design phase 
of the project from working on the construction project as a 3rd Party Material Testing & 
Inspection Laboratory.  Please confirm the Geotechnical Consultant will not be excluded from 
the construction testing aspects of the project. 
 
The Geotechnical Consultant who prepares the Geotechnical Investigation Report is 
always retained through the prime design engineering consultant to assist with questions 
or clarifications to the project design during construction. The Geotechnical Consultant 
is not excluded from the construction testing aspects of the project, however, ICTC will 
issue a separate RFP for construction related material testing and laboratory 
inspections during the construction phase of the project to which a separate geotechnical 
consultant may be selected. ICTC encourages fair and equal opportunities for all 
consulting firms interested in participating in ICTC projects. 

 
9. Would ICTC consider extending the due date for proposals? 

 
Section 2 – Item 2.3 – Proposal Submittance is hereby amended as follows: 
 
The hard copies and USB drive shall be mailed, or hand delivered to the Imperial 
County Transportation Commission, 1503 N. Imperial Avenue, Suite 104, El Centro, 
CA, and received prior to 3:00 PM, on December 1, 2025. 
 
Any proposals received prior to the time and date specified for the Proposal Due Date 
in the Schedule of Events above may be withdrawn or modified by written request of 
the Consultant. To be considered, however, the modified Proposal must be received 
prior to 3:00 P.M., December 1, 2025. 



 
The amended anticipated date of award/contract execution is hereby amended to 
January 28, 2026, or February 25, 2026. 

 
10. Regarding LEED Silver Certification reference in Section 5 - Scope of Work, item 7, bullet 

#6. Is it ICTC's intent to actually certify the project or just design to the intent of LEED silver 
certification? The process of certification involves additional professional services and 
construction soft costs for management of this process. 
 
It is ICTC’s intent to design the facility to incorporate LEED Silver components, 
framework and benefits. ICTC is not currently anticipating certifying the project. ICTC 
is downgrading its goal to design to LEED Silver to LEED Certified.  

 
11. Please confirm the 18 - 36 month schedule reference in Section 5, item 8, is for the design and 

permitting process, and does not include the construction duration of the project. 
 
ICTC confirms that the proposed 18-36 month schedule is specifically for the design and 
permitting process and does not include construction efforts.  
 

12. Please confirm Construction Management services will be provided by a third party. Typical 
construction support services (construction admin) by the design team are understood to be 
included in the project scope. Typical for a project of this size, the owner hires a CM firm to 
facilitate the bidding and construction phases in collaboration with the design team. 
 
ICTC confirms that Construction Management Services will be provided by a separate 
third party. ICTC will issue a separate Request for Proposals (RFP) for the effort at a 
later time.  
 
The consulting team selected for this project will be responsible for providing the 
services outlined in Section 5 – Item 22 – Technical Construction Support. Such services 
include but are not limited to: Assisting ICTC with responding to questions during the 
construction bidding process pertaining to the project design and specifications. 
 

13. Does ICTC have any design or documentation standards that we should be aware of? Does 
ICTC have any CAD standards the awarded team is to adhere to? 
 
ICTC has previously prepared a Bus Stop Design and Safety Guidelines Handbook. The 
document contains some general standards; however, the document is primarily 
tailored towards bus stop improvements. The document is located within ICTC’s 
website at the following location: https://www.imperialctc.org/publications-and-
reports/transit-and-non-motorized 
 
Off-Site Improvements inclusive of applicable On-Site Improvements should adhere to 
the city of El Centro Design and Construction Standards. More information can be 
found at the following location. https://www.cityofelcentro.org/1306/Construction-
Standards  

https://www.imperialctc.org/publications-and-reports/transit-and-non-motorized
https://www.imperialctc.org/publications-and-reports/transit-and-non-motorized
https://www.cityofelcentro.org/1306/Construction-Standards
https://www.cityofelcentro.org/1306/Construction-Standards


14. Are new signalized intersections expected to be included as a part of the project? 
 
ICTC is not anticipating any signalized intersections associated with the project.  
 

15. Amendments to the Proposed Agreement  
 
ICTC will discuss and consider proposed amendments to the agreement upon selection 
of the consultant.  
 

16. ICTC has placed the Microsoft Excel/Word Version of Attachment B – Cost Proposal 
Form on the ICTC website for consultant use. 

 
17. Section 2 – Item 2.9 Equal Opportunity – The project specific Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise (DBE) goal of 14% for the project has been amended to 0%. The adjustment 
has been implemented due to the recent United States Department of Transportation 
(USDOT) Interim Final Rule. The components of the Interim Final Rule are effective as 
of October 3, 2025. ICTC continues to support and encourage the use of all qualified 
consulting firms for the project.  

 
Thank you for your interest in the bid process. Should there be any further questions, please email 
davidaguirre@imperialctc.org.   

mailto:davidaguirre@imperialctc.org


This map/plat is being furnished as an aid in locating the herein
described Land in relation to adjoining streets, natural boundaries
 and other land, and is not a survey of the land depicted. Except 
to the extent a policy of title insurance is expressly modified by
endorsement, if any, the Company does not insure dimensions, 
distances, location of easements, acreage or other matters shown 
thereon.

ORDER NO.
7102500645
06/17/2025

APN
064-450-076-000

¹
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PIQ

Ease for Public Road recorded 
05/06/1905 Bk310 Pg302 Deeds - Item 6 
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Drainage Ditch recorded 
12/01/1924 Bk68 Pg123 OR - Item 7 
Ease for Sewer Line recorded 
04/08/1937 Bk484 Pg120 OR - Item 8
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Rights of Way recorded 
Bk9 Pg71 License Survey Maps - Item 9
Ease for Power Line & Necessary recorded 
08/02/1939 Bk526 Pg575 OR - Item 10 
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Canal, Telephone & Electric 
Power Lines recorded 
09/22/1939 Bk534 Pg423 OR - Item 11
Ease for Water Pipe recorded 
10/24/1955 # 35 Bk922 Pg30 &
# 36 Bk922 Pg32 OR - Item 12
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Construction, Installation, Maintenance, 
Service & Repair of Underground Sewer Mains recorded 
12/13/1957 # 9 Bk981 Pg329 OR - Item 13
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Public Street recorded 
11/05/2001 # 2001-024820 Bk2089 Pg703 OR - Item 15 
(Unlocatable)
Ease for Road recorded 
Parcel Map # 43-350-29 - Item 16
Ease for Transmission & Tistribution of Electricity recorded 
08/19/2022 # 2022017914 OR - Item 20

DETAIL DETAIL "A"

SEE DETAIL "A"
































